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Nowell, Keith, Env. Health

From: Altherr, Peter@DOT <peter.altherr@dot.ca.gov>
Sent: Thursday, September 06, 2018 5:07 PM
To: Nowell, Keith, Env. Health; Roe, Dilan, Env. Health; Boyer, Ray@DOT; John Love; 

Semple, Grant J@DOT; Shindler, Mark@DOT
Subject: Draft Meeting Summary; Alameda County LOP Case No. RO-225; Caltrans Parcel No. 

DD-036980-01-03; 555 Hegenberger Road; Oakland
Attachments: ALA LOP RO_225 Meeting Summary 20180905 DRAFT.pdf

 
Attached for your review please find a draft summary of our meeting on September 5, 2018 to discuss Alameda 
County LOP Case No. RO-225. 
 
Please provide me with any comments you may have by 5 p.m. on September 20th.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Peter Altherr, P.E. 
Transportation Engineer/Civil 
Phone: (510) 286-4668 
 
California Department of Transportation - District 4 
Office of Environmental Engineering 
Hazardous Waste Branch “B” 
111 Grand Avenue 
P.O. Box 23660, MS-8C 
Oakland, CA 94623-0660 
 
http://www.dot.ca.gov/d4/environmental/ 
 



MEETING SUMMARY* 

Subject:  Caltrans Parcel DD-036980-01-03 (Site) 
Alameda County LOP Case No. RO 225 / RWQCB Case No. 01-1830 
555 Hegenberger Road; Oakland, CA 94621 

 
Meeting Date: September 5, 2018 
Meeting Time: 10:30 to Noon 
Location: 1131 Harbor Bay Parkway; Alameda, CA  

Agenda: Review site history; Review site status; and discuss path toward case closure.  

Participants:  

Peter Altherr, Transportation Engineer, Caltrans District 4 Hazardous Waste Branch “B” 
Ray Boyer, Branch Chief, Caltrans District 4  Hazardous Waste Branch “B” 
John Love, Senior Project Geologist, Geocon Consultants Inc. 
Keith Nowell, Geologist, Alameda County Healthcare Services Agency 
Dilan Roe, Chief – Land Water Division, Alameda County Healthcare Services Agency 
Grant Semple, Senior Right of Way Agent, Caltrans District 4 
Mark Shindler, Supervising Right of Way Agent, Caltrans District 4 

After introductions, Peter Altherr provided a brief overview of the site history. Note that 
information shown inside [brackets] was not provided during this meeting, but is provided in 
this summary for clarification. 

Caltrans acquired a portion of the City of Oakland’s Corporation Yard No. 2 from the City of 
Oakland in 1970 [April 20th] for the purpose of constructing the new Interstate 880 freeway.  
Caltrans then leased this property back to the City of Oakland [until June 30, 1974] for 
continued use as a corporation yard. This corporation yard included four underground fuel-
storage tanks (USTs) and fuel dispensers. Attachment 1, a Sanborn Map of this area, shows the 
former office building highlighted in yellow.  The former fuel dispensers were located along the 
south side of this office building and the USTs were located to the west of the office. 

When Caltrans purchased the Site, Caltrans Parcel No. DD-036980-01-03, we did not acquire 
the entire [4.48 acre] corporation yard; Caltrans only acquired about one acre of the original 
property [1.28 acres]. Attachment 2, Appraisal Map A-759.8A, shows some of the original 
structures located within the corporation yard and shows that the much of the former footprint 
of the corporation yard is currently outside of Caltrans’ right of way. [3.2 acres of the former 
4.48-acre corporation yard is now located within APN 42-4328-8-1 owned by D. Thompson 
Properties LLC] 
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Attachment 3 is a recent aerial photograph which depicts the approximate limits of the former 
City of Oakland Corporation Yard No. 2 as a red dashed line.  The former structures within the 
corporation yard are shown in tan lines with black cross hatching.  The former concrete slab 
foundation of the office is visible and roughly lines up with the tan outline of the former office 
building. Attachment 3 shows the approximate location of the underground storage tanks and 
shows the general vicinity of residual petroleum contamination.  Note that the residual 
petroleum contamination extends onto the adjacent property [ APN 42-4328-8-1 owned by D. 
Thompson Properties LLC].  

Geocon consultants, at Caltrans’ request, prepared an Interim Remedial Action Workplan which 
proposed secondary source removal via excavation at the locations outlined in blue dashed 
lines shown on Attachment 4. While an amended Interim Remedial Action Workplan was 
approved by Alameda County Healthcare Services Agency, Caltrans does not presently have the 
right to enter APN 42-4328-8-1. Peter Altherr expressed that, while Caltrans has proposed to 
remove contaminated soil from APN 42-4328-8-1, it is not clear that Caltrans is legally 
responsible for remediating contaminated soil on APN 42-4328-8-1.  

Caltrans has, to Peter’s knowledge, never used the underground storage tanks at this site. 
Caltrans did use this site as a resident engineer’s office and as a materials testing facility, but 
not to dispense fuel. This fact was verified by Mr. Shindler. Note that Caltrans already had a 
maintenance station [with fuel service] located just a few miles [4 miles] north of this site. [See 
file for Alameda County LOP Case No. RO-397 for Caltrans’ former South Oakland Maintenance 
Station at 1112 29th Avenue in Oakland]. Peter did recall, however, that Alameda County 
inspected Caltrans’ Materials Lab and that there was an inspection report available. 

Dilan Roe, at this point in the meeting, asked Keith Nowell to send a notice of responsibility 
(NOR) and a site-investigation request to the City of Oakland.  

Dilan Roe asked about the future use of the property [DD-036980-01-03] and Mr. Shindler 
responded that the adjacent property owner reached out to Caltrans to inquire about 
purchasing this property. The presumed future use would be as a paved parking lot. Mark 
Shindler stated that Caltrans wants to sell this property.  Peter Altherr stated that Caltrans’ 
policy is not to sell contaminated properties that are under a cleanup order, but this statement 
of Caltrans’ policy was contested by Mark Shindler.  Peter responded that he verified this policy 
recently with Kim Christmann in Caltrans Division of Environmental Analysis. 

Mark Shindler stated that the Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART) aerial link to the Oakland 
International Airport passes over a portion of the Site and that they constructed footings within 
the area of contamination at the Site. Mark recommended that Alameda County request 



MEETING SUMMARY 
Caltrans Parcel DD-036980-01-03 
September 5, 2018 
Page 3 of 4 
 

information from BART regarding any contamination found during construction of these 
footings. 

Dilan Roe informed us that present state policy is to only analyze vapor intrusion risk for the 
current land use.  Since the current land use for Caltrans Parcel DD-036980-01-03 is as a paved 
parking lot it may be possible that this site could qualify for low-threat closure if Caltrans were 
to implement a land-use covenant to restrict the land use to its current use as a parking lot. 

The adjacent APN 42-4328-8-1 is already known to Alameda County as LOP Case No. RO-1389. 
Now that is has been established that D. Thompson Properties LLC has expressed interest in 
acquiring Caltrans Parcel DD-036980-01-03 and that both properties have shallow surface soil 
and groundwater contamination concerns – that may overlap; Dilan Roe proposed a low-flow 
groundwater-sampling event on Caltrans right of way that is coordinated with a groundwater 
sampling event on APN 42-4328-8-1; i.e., on the former GMC Truck Center site now occupied by 
TEC Equipment – Oakland. This coordinated groundwater sampling event will provide 
information that can be used to identify whether or not there are co-mingled contamination 
plumes at this location and provide data for an integrated conceptual site model. Dilan Roe also 
requested that Caltrans prepare a isoconcentration map that delineates the extent of benzene 
contamination on Caltrans property. 

John Love expressed concern that Caltrans’ wells were screened too deep and therefore our 
groundwater observations might not be representative of actual shallow-groundwater 
conditions since they were potentially diluted from water coming up from the seasonally-
confined aquifer located underneath the contaminated soil. If, however, the wells on the 
adjacent property were also screened at similar intervals then the data could be considered an 
apples-to-apples comparison. 

Peter Altherr asked if Caltrans needed to include funds in the next task order to re-survey all of 
the groundwater wells on both properties to ensure that the depth to water data is all 
referenced to one common datum. This survey data would ensure that the groundwater 
elevation data accurately reflects actual groundwater elevation contours. Peter also asked if 
water samples obtained from this coordinated groundwater monitoring event needs to be sent 
to the same analytical laboratory. Dilan Roe expressed that while having one lab do all of the 
analytical work would be ideal – she felt this requirement was not essential. 

Peter asked about Caltrans obligations regarding the proposed Interim Remedial Action 
Workplan and Dilan responded that this workplan would be placed on hold pending the results 
of the coordinated groundwater sampling event. 
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Action Item(s): 

1) Alameda County – Send NOR letter to City of Oakland 
2) Alameda County – Send information requests to City of Oakland and BART 
3) Caltrans/Geocon – Prepare a task order for a coordinated groundwater monitoring 

event 
Sample groundwater for gasoline, diesel, and VOCs. 

4) Caltrans/Geocon – Survey wells included in coordinated monitoring event 
5) Geocon – Prepare draft workplan 
6) Alameda County – Review and comment on Geocon’s draft workplan 
7) Geocon – Conduct coordinated low-flow groundwater monitoring per approved 

workplan 
8) Geocon – Prepare groundwater-monitoring report 
9) Alameda County/Caltrans/Geocon – Meet to review results of coordinated groundwater 

monitoring. 

Notes: * This document is not intended to be an actual transcript of what each individual said at this meeting, but 
rather a general summary of key discussion points. Please contact Peter Altherr via email at 
peter.altherr@dot.ca.gov if you have any comments regarding this meeting summary. 
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ATTACHMENT 1

Location of fuel
dispensers.



Location of fuel dispensers

Extent of Caltrans right of way; i
Caltrans' property line



Former Location of Fuel Dispensers/
Service Station
555 Hegenberger Road
Oakland, CA 94621
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ATTACHMENT 3
Map of Former City of Oakland Corporation Yard No. 2
RWQCB Case No. 01-1830
Drawn by P. Altherr May 18, 2018

Former Location of Underground Fuel
Storage Tanks

Footprint of former structures
associated with the corporation
yard are outlined in brown with
black cross hatching.

Approximate limits of the City of
Oakland Corporation Yard No. 2
shown as a red dashed line.

GMC Facility Sales Building
8099 South Coliseum Way

Approximate limits of residual
fuel contamination and
general vicinity of proposed
soil-removal action; i.e.,
secondary source removal.
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Soil Sample
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(Associated with Former Caltrans)

(Associated with GMC Facility)

Soil Boring (2015)
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Borings indicated in RED had
contaminant concentrations in
groundwater that exceeded SF Bay
RWQCB ESL for vapor intrusion to
indoor air.
Borings indicated in GREEN had
contaminant concentrations in soil
that exceeded SF Bay RWQCB
ESL for direct exposure.

Estimated Soil Excavation Area

SITE PLAN555 Hegenberger Road,

6671 BRISA STREET, LIVERMORE, CA 94550;  PHONE 925 371-5900  - FAX 925 371-5915

genberger Maintenance Station

Oakland, California

GEOCON Proj. No. E8722-02-01B August 2016 Figure 2
SCALE: feet

300 60

Reference: STANTEC, Figure 8 - "Subsurface Utility Map", dated 05/30/12.

SB-23  to SB-25

Location of former
fuel dispensers

Proposed excavation areas located on APN 42-4328-8-1;
i.e., outside of Caltrans right of way.
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ATTACHMENT 4

CALTRANS DD-036980-01-03 (APPROXIMATE)
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ATTACHMENT 5






















	RO225_CORRES_MEETING_2018-09-06_Cvr
	RO225_CORRES_MEETING_2018-09-06

